
SOuThErN uNIvErSITy SySTEM

bOard OF SuPErvISOrS

MEETINGS

9 a.M.

FrIday, March 18, 2016

2Nd FlOOr, J.S. clark adMINISTraTION buIldING

SOuThErN uNIvErSITy aNd a&M cOllEGE

baTON rOuGE, lOuISIaNa 70813

Maya_Banks
Sticky Note
MigrationConfirmed set by Maya_Banks

Maya_Banks
Sticky Note
MigrationConfirmed set by Maya_Banks



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
9:00 a.m. 

Friday, March 18, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

 

AGENDA 

1.  Call to Order and Invocation 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

3.  Adoption of the Agenda 

 

4.  Public Comments 

 

5.  Special Presentations 

 Devon Gales 

 SUBR Honda All-Star Quiz Bowl Team 

 Southern University Laboratory School grades 5th - 9th wins the Louisiana Youth 

Sports Junior High School State Basketball Championship 

 LIGO Presentation (Dr. Stephen McGuire) 

 SUBR Music Department Initiative (Dr. Thomas Miller) 
 

6.  Action Items 
 

A.  Minutes of the February 19, 2016, regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

 

B. COMMITTEES 

 

1. Academic Affairs Committee 

 Honorary Degree for Governor John Bel Edwards, 2016 Commencement 

Speaker, SUNO 

 Approval of Endowed Professorship Policy 

 Myra A. Kleinpeter Endowed Professorship in Science, SUBR 

 Endowed Professorship Appointments, SUBR 

 

2. Finance Committee 

 Approval of BA-7 #6 –To Transfer Funds to SUSLA as authorized by the BOR’s 

approval of the 2nd quarter Grad Act Performance Improvement Contract Report 

 Approval of BA-7 #7 – Reduction in State General Funds ($67,802) and Statutory 

Dedicated Funds ($95,952) as mandated for the Southern University System in 

HB 122 of the FY16 Special Session.   

 Consideration of a resolution of the Southern University System to settle claims in 

Oil RE: Spill by the Oil Rig Deep Water Horizon in the Gulf of Mexico, MDL  

No. 2179 District U.S. Court, Eastern District of Louisiana  

(Executive Session may be required) 

 

3.  Personnel Committee 

 Approval of Employment Contract for Dr. Rodney Ellis, SUSLA 



Page 2 

Agenda 

Board of Supervisors 

Friday, March 18, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. Committee Reports and Recommendations 

1. Academic Affairs Committee 

2. Finance Committee 

3. Personnel Committee 

 

D. Request Suspension of the Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center 

Chancellor Search  

 

E. Interviews for Chancellor, SULC (Executive Session may be required) 

 John Michael Guidry 

 Russell Jones 

 John Pierre 

 Roederick White 
 

F. Resolutions 

 

7.  Informational Items 

 

A. Interim Financial Statements 

 

B. Legislative Update 

 

C. System President’s Report 

 

D. Campus Reports 

 

E. Board Retreat – April 21, 2016 

  

 

8.  Other Business 

 

 

9.  Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
Friday, March 18, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.  Roll Call 

 

2. Adoption of the Agenda 

 

3. Public Comments 

 

4. Action Item(s) 

 

A. Honorary Degree for Governor John Bel Edwards, 2016 Commencement Speaker, 

SUNO 

 

B. Approval of Endowed Professorship Policy 

 

C. Myra A. Kleinpeter Endowed Professorship in Science, SUBR 

 

D. Endowed Professorship Appointments, SUBR 

 

Endowed Professorship Appointee School/Department 

1. Alphonse Jackson-Casino Rouge 

Endowed Professorship 

Dr. Revathi Hines Public Administration 

2. Rupert Richardson/Casino Rouge 

Endowed Professorship 

Dr. Eric Horent Public Administration 

3. Louis Jetson-Lamar Corporation Dr. William Arp III Political Science 

4. Leon Tarver/Casino Rouge Endowed 

Professorship 

Dr. Leslie Taylor-Grover Public Administration 

5. Barbara Dixon/Kellogg Endowed 

Professorship  

Dr. Bernestine McGee Agriculture, Family and 

Consumer Sciences 

6. BASF Corporation Endowed 

Professorship 

Dr. Edwin Walker Chemistry 

7. Walter Dumas Endowed 

Professorship 

Dr. Wesley Gray Environmental Toxicology 

8. Formosa/Prince Hall Endowed 

Professorship  

Dr. Edward Doomes Chemistry 

9. James & Ruth Smith Endowed 

Professorship  

Dr. Zhu Hua Ning Agricultural, Family and 

Consumer Sciences 

10. James & Ruth Smith Endowed 

Professorship 

Dr. Rao Uppu Environmental Toxicology 

11. Dr. James and Jewel Prestage 

Kellogg Endowed Professorship in 

Nursing 

Dr. Cheryl Taylor School of Nursing 

 



Page 2 

Academic Affairs Committee 

 

 

 

Endowed Professorship Appointee School/Department 

12. Baton Rouge Area Foundation 

Endowed Professorship in Nursing 

Dr. Janet S. Rami School of Nursing 

13. Baton Rouge General/General Health 

System Endowed Professorship in 

Nursing 

Dr. Sharon Bator School of Nursing 

14. Our Lady of the Lake Regional 

Medical Center Endowed 

Professorship in Nursing 

Dr. Wanda Spurlock School of Nursing 

15. Woman’s Hospital Endowed 

Professorship in Nursing 

Dr. Sandra Brown School of Nursing 

16. College of Engineering/Contractor’s 

Educational Trust Fund Endowed 

Professorship 

Dr. Joshua Joseph Civil Engineering 

17. School of Architecture/Contractor’s 

Educational Trust Fund Endowed 

Professorship 

Dr. Patrick Carriere Civil Engineering 

18. Formosa Plastic Endowed 

Professorship in Mechanical 

Engineering 

Dr. Patrick Mensah Mechanical Engineering 

19. The Entergy Corporation Endowed 

Professorship 

Dr. Fred Lacy Electrical Engineering 

20. Dow Chemical Company Endowed 

Professorship 

Dr. Samuel Ibekwe Mechanical Engineering 

21. Cleo Fields Endowed Professorship 

in Mass Communication 

Dr. Mahmoud Braima Mass Communications 

22. Community Coffee/Frank Hayden 

Memorial Endowed Professorship in 

the Arts 

Dr. Addie Dawson-Euba Fine Arts 

23. Joseph Kermit Haynes/Casino Rouge 

Endowed professorship 

Dr. Tonya Rose Education 

24. Isabel Herson/Casino Rouge 

Endowed Professorship in Education 

Dr. James Taylor Education 

25. Isaac Greggs/Casino Endowed 

Professorship in Education 

Dr. Nathan Haymer Music 

26. Rosalie Guidry Daste Endowed 

Professorship in Urban Education 

Dr. Luria Young Curriculum and Instruction 

27. Emma Glynn Trust Fund Endowed 

Professorship 

Dr. Diana Kelly Curriculum and Instruction 

28. Joseph R. Glynn Endowed 

Professorship for Education 

Dr. VerJanis Peoples Curriculum and Instruction 

29. Kleinpeter Family College of 

Education Professorship 

Dr. Curtis Mustiful Curriculum and Instruction 

30. Tolor E. White/Casino Rouge 

Endowed Professorship in 

Accounting 

Dr. Koffi Dodor Accounting, Finance and 

Economics 



Page 3  

Academic Affairs Committee 

 

 

 

 

Endowed Professorship Appointee School/Department 

31. Ben D. Johnson, Sr. Endowed 

Professorship in Business 

Dr. Aloyce Kaliba Accounting, Finance and 

Economics 

32. W.E. “Bill” Tucker Endowed 

Professorship in Business 

Dr. Sung C. No Accounting, Finance and 

Economics 

33. Peter Moncrieffe Endowed 

Professorship in Business 

Dr. Mysore Ramaswamy Management and Marketing 

34. Dr. E. C. Harrrison Endowed 

Professorship in Business 

Dr. Stephen Jaros Management and Marketing  

35. The Coca-Cola Foundation Endowed 

Professorship in Business 

Dr. Melissa Waters Accounting, Finance and 

Economics 

36. The Coca-Cola Foundation Endowed 

Professorship in International 

Business 

Dr. Vasantha Chigurupati 

 

Accounting, Finance and 

Economics  

37. George Leon Netterville/Kellogg 

Endowed Professorship 

Dr. Vineeta Hingorami Accounting, Finance and 

Economics 

38. Houston Alumni Endowed 

Professorship in Business 

Dr. Victor Mbarika Management and Marketing 

39. Southern University Business & 

Industry Cluster Endowed 

Professorship 

Dr. Kimberly Powell Management and Marketing 

40. The Lincoln J. Harrison-Coca Cola 

Foundation Endowed Professorship 

in Accounting 

Dr. Mary Darby Accounting, Finance and 

Economics  

 

 

 

5. Other Business 

 

6. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMBERS 
Mrs. Ann Smith, Chair, Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Vice Chair, 

Atty. Tony Clayton, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Mr. Mike A. Small, Dr. Rani Whitfield 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver II – Ex-Officio 



 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE  
(Following Academic Affairs Committee) 

Friday, March 18, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

1.  Roll Call 

 

2. Adoption of the Agenda 

 

3. Public Comments 

 

4. Action Item(s) 

 

A. Approval of BA-7 #6 –To Transfer Funds to SUSLA as authorized by the BOR’s 

approval of the 2nd quarter Grad Act Performance Improvement Contract Report 

 

B. Approval of BA-7 #7 – Reduction in State General Funds ($67,802) and Statutory 

Dedicated Funds ($95,952) as mandated for the Southern University System in HB 

122 of the FY16 Special Session.   

 

C. Consideration of a resolution of the Southern University System to settle claims in 

Oil RE: Spill by the Oil Rig Deep Water Horizon in the Gulf of Mexico, MDL No. 

2179 District U.S. Court, Eastern District of Louisiana  

(Executive Session may be required) 

 

5. Other Business 

 

6. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMBERS 
Mr. Myron K. Lawson, Chair, Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., Vice Chair, 

Atty. Tony Clayton, Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Rev. Donald R. Henry, Mr. Darren Mire 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver II – Ex-Officio 

 



 

PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE  
(Following Finance Committee) 

Friday, March 18, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

1. Roll Call 

 

2. Adoption of the Agenda 

 

3. Public Comments 

 

4. Action Item(s) 

 

A. Approval of Employment Contract for Dr. Rodney Ellis, SUSLA 

 

5. Other Business 

 

6. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMBERS 
Atty. Patrick D. Magee, Chair, Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Vice Chair, 

Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., Atty. Tony M. Clayton, Mr. Myron K. Lawson, Rev. Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr. 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver II – Ex-Officio 

 

 

 

 



Southern University Board of Supervisors  
9:00 a.m.  

Friday, February 19, 2016 
Southern University-Shreveport 

Jesse N. Stone Lecture Hall 
3050 Martin Luther King Jr. Drive 

Shreveport, Louisiana 
Minutes  

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Chairman Leon R. Tarver II.  
The invocation was given by The Rev. Joe R. Gant.  

 
PRESENT  
Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., Mr. Dominique Diamond, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Dr. Curman 

Gaines, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Rev. Donald Ray Henry, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Myron Lawson, Atty. Patrick Magee, 

Mr. Darren Mire, Mrs. Ann Smith, and Rev. Samuel Tolbert  

A quorum was established. 

ABSENT 
Atty. Tony Clayton, Mr. Michael Small, and Dr. Rani Whitfield  
 
UNIVERSITY PERSONNEL ATTENDING  
System President Ray Belton, Chief of Staff Robyn Merrick, System Vice President Flandus McClinton (SUBR), 
Chancellors Victor Ukpolo (SUNO), Adell Brown (SUAREC), Sam Gilliam (SUSLA), and John Pierre (SULC)  

BOARD COUNSEL  
Attys. Winston Decuir, Jr. and Tracie Woods  
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion of Rev. Gant and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the agenda was adopted with the following 
changes: eliminate Item 5D, move agenda item 5 N to agenda item 5 A 1 and move agenda item 5 O after item 5 
A 1. 
 
Motion carried unanimously 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Faculty Senate President Thomas Miller attended the meeting to discuss item 5J and shared information about 
the search process for the Vice Provost for Academic Affairs at SUBR. 

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEMS  

A.  Minutes of the January 8, 2016, regular meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors  

Prior to the approval of the minutes, Rev. Gant stated that the report written by the Executive 
Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost M. Christopher Brown on his visit to the 
Shreveport campus should be sent to all board members.  
 
On the motion of Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the following resolution 
was approved. 



Page 2 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
January 8, 2016 
 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that the minutes of the Board’s regular meeting of January 
8, 2016, be and are hereby approved.  

1. (Previously Item 5N) Performance of Dr. Victor Ukpolo Chancellor -Southern 
University-New Orleans 
Upon the motion of Mrs. Ann Smith and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson Board members 
convened for executive session.  Chairman Tarver announced that the Board would be 
meeting with its staff and others that it deems necessary.  He stated that no votes or 
other action would be taken during the executive session. 

Yeas: Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., Mr. Dominique Diamond, Mr. Raymond 
Fondel, Dr. Curman Gaines, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Rev. Donald Ray Henry, 
Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Myron Lawson, Atty. Patrick Magee, Mr. 
Darren Mire, Mrs. Ann Smith, and Rev. Samuel Tolbert 

 
Nays:    Rev. Joe R. Gant  

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

  

MEETING RECONVENES 
Upon the motion of Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the Board 
reconvened. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
2.  (Previously Item 5M) Finalists interviews for Chancellor, SUSLA 

 

PUBLIC INTERVIEW OF FINALISTS WERE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Dr. Rodney Ellis 

2. Dr. Johnny Moore 

3. Dr. Boyce Williams 

 

Executive Sessions followed for each interview. 

 

Upon the motion by Mr. Myron Lawson and seconded by Rev. Joe R. Gant items 5B, 5C, 5F, 5G, 5H, and 

5I were recommended for approval. 

 

Motion passed unanimously. 

B.   Request Approval of MOU between the Thought Network Broadcasting (TNB) Group and the 
Southern University Law Center, SULC 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the Thought Network Broadcasting (TNB) Group and the 

Southern University Law Center be and it is hereby approved. 

  

 



Page 3 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
January 8, 2016 
 
 C.  Request Approval to Engage Southern Media & Opinion Research, Inc. to Conduct Phase 2 of 

Feasibility Study of Shreveport Branch/Satellite Campus for SULC 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the SULC request to engage 

Southern Media & Opinion Research, Inc. to Conduct Phase 2 of the Feasibility Study of Shreveport 

Branch/Satellite Campus for the SU Law Center be and it is hereby approved. 

 

F. Request Approval for Small Capital Project 

 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the request by SUBR to 

develop a small capital outlay project (design and construction of entrance archway) be and it is 

hereby approved. 

 

G. Request Approval of Employee and Dependent Tuition Discounts, SUBR 

 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the tuition discounts for 

SUBR employees and dependents be and it is hereby approved. 

 

H. Approval of Medical Leave for Berryl Gordon-Thompson, SULC 

 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the medical leave for Berryl 

Gordon-Thompson be and it is hereby approved. 

 

I. BA-7 #4 and 5 Request for Mid-Year Budget Adjustment, SUS 

 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the BA 4/5 request for mid- 

year budget adjustment for SUS be and it is hereby approved. 

 

E. Request Approval for Resolution regarding EOServe Contract 

Upon the motion of Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Mr. Calvin Braxton the board will adopt a 

resolution to give EO Serve a notice of breach of contract. 

 

The motion passed unanimously. 

 

J. Approval of Personnel Action on Positions greater than $60,000 

Upon the motion of Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the Board approved the 

personnel actions for Items 5J, 1-5. 

 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the Administration’s 
recommendation for approval of positions with salaries greater than $60,000 be and they are 
hereby approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
January 8, 2016 
 

Name Title/Campus Salary 

1. Dr. Luria Young Vice Provost for Academic Affairs 
SUBR 

$135,000 

2. Nolan Johnson Interim Network Systems Engineer/Manager 
New Appointment, SUBR 

$78,000 

3. Jourden Martin Interim Director of Alumni Affairs 
Continuation, SUS & SUBR 

$60,000 

4. Andrea Mignott Interim Assistant Professor 
New Appointment, SUNO 

$70,000 

5. Pharissa Robinson  Interim Director/Assistant Professor 
New Appointment, SUNO 

$90,000 

 
K. Resolution for Governor’s Office of Homeland Security Grant Signing Authority, SUS & SUBR 

Upon the motion of Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Dr. Curman Gaines to approve a 

resolution on behalf of the SU Board of Supervisors authorizing grant signing authority to SUS 

and SUBR for the Governor’s Office of Homeland Security.  

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that the resolution authorizing grant signing authority to 

SUS and SUBR for the Governor’s Office of Homeland Security be and it is hereby approved 

L. Resolution Supporting Higher Education Initiatives 
Board members received a summary of the bills relative to higher education that will be brought 
before the Legislature and that Governor Edwards supports.  Chairman Tarver stated that he and 
Dr. Belton have been meeting with the Commissioner of Higher Education Joseph Rallo and also 
with other University presidents and management board chairs in the state recently and adopted 
several initiatives to have their collective voices heard at the capitol.  He stated that Higher 
Education Day at the Capitol is one of the initiatives that resulted from the meetings.  

Upon the motion of Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Rev. Donald Ray Henry that the SU Board 
of Supervisors support the higher education initiatives that will be forthcoming during the 2016 
legislative session. 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that Board would support higher education initiatives 
during the 2016 legislative session be and it is hereby approved.  

M. Resolutions 

Upon the motion by Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Rev. Donald Ray Henry the following 

resolutions of condolence were approved: 

The Rogers J. Newman Family. Dr. Newman, retired professor of Mathematics and former 

chairman of the Mathematics Department at SUBR, passed away on January 9. 

The Joyce E. Byrd Family. Mrs. Byrd, a retired Administrative Coordinator II in the Bursar’s 

Office at SUBR, passed away on January 13.  

The Samuel Charles Wiley, Sr. Family. Mr. Wiley, an alumnus of SUBR, passed away on 

January 31. 

The Tonika Goins Family. Ms. Goins, a native of Lake Charles, LA, was an alumnus of SUBR 

and the first African American female District Forest Ranger for the State of Louisiana, 

passed away on February 4.   



Page 5 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
January 8, 2016 
 

The Charity Jenkins Johnson Family. Mrs. Johnson, mother of Rosie J. Taylor, Director of 

Disbursements, SUBR, passed away on February 9. 

The Thomas Wilcox Family. Dr. Wilcox, a former principal of the SU Laboratory School and 

active participant in Founders' Day programs and other activities at the University after his 

retirement, passed away on February 10. 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the resolutions be and they 
are hereby approved. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  Informational Items  

A.  Priority Projects Updates by Campus 
In the absence of Vice President for Finance and Business Affairs a copy of the report was 
distributed to all Board members.  
 

B.  Interim Financial Report as of December 2015, SUS 
A written financial report was included in the packet for review by each board member. 

 
C.  Update on Enrollment by Campuses 

Chancellor Victor Ukpolo, Interim Chancellor John Pierre, and Interim Chancellor Sam Gilliam 
and Executive Vice President of Academic Affairs and Provost M. Christopher Brown reported 
enrollment increases at their respective campuses for the Spring 2016 semester. 

 
 D.  Update on Status of Department of Athletics 

Dr. Terence Vinson, Assistant Vice Chancellor of Enrollment Management gave a status report 
on the athletics programs at SUSLA. 

 
E.  SU Board of Supervisors’ Response to Fees Authorized by House Bill 152 

A copy of the response provided to the House of Representatives was included in the packet. 

F. Legislative Update 

Each Board member received a copy of a memorandum from the Southern Strategy Group-LA 

with an update of the legislative action for the upcoming Special Session of the Legislature. 

G. System President’s Report 

Dr. Ray Belton publicly acknowledged the work of Mr. Sam Gilliam in his role as Interim 
Chancellor of the Shreveport campus and commended him for his willingness to serve and his 
leadership.  Dr. Belton also thanked the Shreveport campus committee for their hospitality and 
the effective and efficient job of hosting the SU Board of Supervisors meeting.  Dr. Belton called 
special attention to the Gateway project which was orchestrated by Student Board member 
Dominique Diamond and thanked him for his vision and work on the project.  Dr. Belton also 
gave an update on the SU Law Center Chancellor Search and the Agricultural, Research and 
Extension Center Chancellor Search.  He announced that the Founders’ Day Speaker would be 
Dr. Mae Jemison and reminded Board members of the Trusteeship Conference scheduled for 
Monday, February 22 at the Pennington Biomedical Research Center.  He reminded board 
members of the HEAT conference which was an idea advanced by Chairman Tarver during 
meetings at the Board of Regents. 



Page 6 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
January 8, 2016 
 

 

H. Campus Reports 

 

SUNO - Dr. Victor Ukpolo submitted a printed copy of the report which was included in the 

meeting packet for review by board members. 

 

SUSLA - Mr. Sam Gilliam submitted a written report that was included in the Board packet for 

review by board members. 

 

SUAREC - Dr. Adell Brown submitted a written report of the activities of the SU Agricultural, 

Research and Extension Center.  He announced that the Annual Livestock Show would be held 

March 5-7. 

 

SULC - Atty. John Pierre submitted a written report to Board members with updates and news 

from the SU Law Center. Atty. Pierre announced two upcoming activities:  In conjunction with 

the University’s Founders’ Day Program the Law Center will have a roundtable discussion on the 

history of access to legal education in the State of Louisiana and the SULC will also celebrate the 

30th Anniversary Commemoration of Clark v. Roemer and Chisom v. Edwards. 

AGENDA ITEM 9: Other Business 

Rev. Joe R. Gant stated that he had attended a convocation at the Shreveport campus and urged those members 

of the faculty and staff that are in charge to monitor the events more closely to guard against unruly behavior 

and derogatory comments from speakers. 

AGENDA ITEM 10: Adjournment 

Upon the motion by Mr. Calvin Braxton and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the meeting adjourned. 



























SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY  AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM 

 BOARD RESOLUTION 

 

 

 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 

PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE 

 

 

THE MYRA A. KLEINPETER ENDOWED PROFESSORSHIP IN SCIENCE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Myra A. Kleinpeter Endowed Professorship in Science, be 

an endowed fund of $60,000, to be matched by State of Louisiana funds from the Louisiana 

Education Quality Support Fund for Endowed Professorships, on a one to one-and-one half 

matching basis.  When the matching funds are incorporated in the Endowed Fund, the income 

will be used solely for salaries or a supplement to salaries for the holder of the Professorship 

and for other expenses directly related to the scholarly work of the holder of the endowed 

professorship. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of Southern University and 

A&M College, hereby express gratitude to the Louisiana Legislature for establishing the 

Endowed Professorship Program. 

 

EXPLANATION 

 

Southern University and A&M College is eligible to apply for State matching funds through 

the Louisiana Board of Regents on a one to one-and-one half matching basis, to establish at 

least two endowed professorships per year.  The Board of Regents has approved guidelines 

whereby the applications for endowed professorships are to be prepared in accordance with the 

“Regulations for the Louisiana Endowed Trust Fund for Endowed Professorships.” 

 

This Fund is established with $60,000 on deposit through Southern University and A&M 

College in Baton Rouge, Louisiana, dedicated to the purpose specified above.  
 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I, Ray L. Belton, Secretary of the Board of Supervisors of Southern University and A&M 

College, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution was authorized and 

approved by executive action of the Board of Supervisors of Southern University and A&M 

College on the 18th day of March, 2016.  

 

DONE AND SIGNED on this the 18th day of March, 2016 at Baton Rouge, Louisiana. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Secretary 

Board of Supervisors 

Southern University and A&M College 
 























































































































































 

 
 

SUNO Brings the H.E.A.T in Baton Rouge 

February 2016 

A Message from the Chancellor 

D 
espite windy and chilly weather, about 2,000 students from across the state gathered on the steps of 
the State Capitol Feb. 24 to voice their concerns about pending budget cuts to higher education.   
 
Two bus loads of SUNO students, faculty, staff and alumni took the trip to Baton Rouge to participate 

in the Higher Education Day “Bring H.E.A.T (Higher Education All Together)” Rally.  Louisiana colleges face $131 
million in cuts if the Legislature doesn’t find a budget fix this fiscal year. 



 

SUNO Center celebrates Black History Month 

2 

During February, the University celebrated  Black 
History Month with a wide array of activities -- lec-
tures, dance, films, poetry, exhibits, musical perfor-
mances, dramatic presentations and other events.  
 
Organized by the Center for African and African 
American Studies (CAAAS) in collaboration with 
several units on campus and the community, the cel-
ebration provided an opportunity to reflect on a cru-
cial part of America’s history, culture and heritage. 
The National Theme was Hallowed Grounds: Sites 
of African American Memories. 
 
The month kicked off with an opening ceremony 
Feb. 2 in the Conference Center. The celebration fea-
tured a presentation from Dr. Schroeder Cherry, a 
puppeteer and mixed media artist. The celebration 
culminated with  a Black State of Affairs Conference. 
The featured speakers were Johnny Massey, a histo-
rian, educator and community attorney; Kathe Ham-
brick-Jackson, director of the River Road African 
American Museum in Donaldsonville, LA; Carl Galm-
on, civil rights activist and member of the National 
Voting Rights Museum in Selma, AL; and Dr. Takuna 
El Shabazz, a grass-roots orator. 
 
Title III Programs and Lyceum funded the programs. 

Top photo:  Puppeteer Dr. Schroeder Cherry (center) shares his 

puppets with, from left, Darlene Holmes, CAAAS administrative 

assistant, and Linda Hill, CAAAS curator/archivist. Bottom pho-

tos: Dr. Takuna El Shabazz and Carl Galmon. 

The National Association of 

Black Social Workers (NABSW) 

has named Dr. Ira Arthell Neigh-

bors, a Social Work professor, as its 

Educator of the Year. The award 

will be presented Thursday, March 

24 at the association’s 48th National 

Conference at Hyatt Regency New 

Orleans.  

 

According to the association, Dr. 

Neighbors was selected for this 

award because of his personal com-

mitment to social work and advanc-

ing student development through 

his mentorship, scholarship, and 

tireless service.   

  

“We consider Dr. Neighbors a mod-

el of the best in social work educa-

tion as he masterfully shares his 

commitment to communities of Af-

rican ancestry in a sustained and 

diligent manner,” said NABSW Na-

tional Presi-

dent J. Toni 

Oliver. “He is 

receiving this 

award be-

cause of his 

scholarship, 

commitment 

to students, his work ethic and his 

tireless and continuous commit-

ment to the National Association of 

Black Social Workers.” 

Dr. Neighbors Named Educator of the Year 



 

Dr.  Belisle Receives 5th Patent from USPTO 

3 

Dr. William Belisle, director for Grants and Sponsored Programs, has received an United 

States Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO) Issue Notification for his fifth patent Num-

ber 9,276,505, entitled “Apparatus for Elevation in a Magnetic Field.”  

The patented apparatus is described as “a flat opposing glass tube with a magnet posi-

tioned above a flat opposing base electromagnet positioned at the bottom with both mag-

nets able to manipulate the elevating system with the outer edges of the elevated magnet 

in close proximity to the inside surface to reduce elevated magnet flipping..."   

The invention can be used for enhanced elevation heights and manipulation of elevated objects using electromag-

net fields regarding transportation as well for enhanced studies of electromagnetism in Physics, Science and other 

areas. 

Orleans Resource Center (ORC), the small business owned by Dr. Belisle, has worked over the past 20 years to 

develop and market patented products. Currently, ORC is working with the LSU Mechanical and Electrical Engi-

neering Department Senior Capstone Program in developing prototypes for two of Dr. Belisle’s patented prod-

ucts to be provided to the Louisiana Procurement Office and to Fisher Scientific for consideration.  

College of Arts & Sciences 
Dr. Lisa Mims-Devezin, Dean 

NATURAL SCIENCES  
The faculty of the Department of Natural Sciences has been actively involved in activities, such as professional 
development, grant writings, community service, editorials, conferences and workshops, departmental newslet-
ters, field trips and securing internships as summarized below. 
  

►Proposals: 

 Dr. Bashir Atteia is working on a couple of proposals for summer 2016 fellowships: (a) HTP as a new 
modulator of Vesicular Trafficking in Human Corpora Cavernosa Cells and (b) Roles of Galectin-1 
and Galectin-3 in the Pathogenesis of Atherosclerosis 

 Dr. Christian Clement has finalized for submission a Louisiana Biomedical Research Network (LBRN) 
Faculty summer research grant proposal to study a neurovirulent strain of Herpes Simplex Virus type 
1 (HSV-1) using bioinformatics tools at Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center (LSUHSC). 
Dr. Clement also has been invited to attend the LBRN annual meeting in Monroe, La.  

 Dr. Pam Marshall, director of Forensic Science Program, submitted a grant proposal for National Sci-
ence Foundation Targeted Infusion Project titled, “Targeted Infusion Project: Enhancing Curricula 
and Laboratory Instrumentation for Forensic Science Undergraduate Research and Education at 
Southern University” on December 16, 2015. Ms. Paris Favorite is co-PI on the project. 

 

►Field Trips/Internships: Dr. Marshall toured the Orleans Parish Coroner’s Office New Facility on Dec. 18, 2015 

to establish Internship placement for Forensic Science seniors. Dr. Marshall established/secured three site loca-
tions for student internships for Spring 2016: Orleans Parish Coroner’s Office, Hammond Toxicology Laboratory, 
and InnoGenomics, Inc. 
 



 

Natural Sciences continued 

4 

►Editorials: Dr. Marshall has accepted a position as editor for the International Journal of Forensic Science and 

Pathology (IJFP) 
 

►DNS Newsletter: The Fall 2015 Newsletter of the Department of Natural Sciences has been released by the 

Departmental Newsletter Committee – Dr. Joe Omojola and Ms. Phyllis Okwan - and disseminated to all faculty 
and administrators. 
 

►Publicity of Forensic Science Program: Media Interviews were conducted for new internship program at Or-

leans Parish Coroner’s Office. Three forensic science majors appeared on radio or TV: Ruth Hoth on WWL-TV; 
Dana DeMolle on WBOK 1230AM; and Brooklynn Johnson on WWL radio. Dr. Marshall interviewed with the 
“Louisiana Weekly.” 
 

►Workshops: Dr. Mostafa Elaasar organized the American Association of Physics Teach-

ers workshops at SUNO Jan. 9-10. Dr. Rachid Belmasrour, Ms. Mary P. Richter, Ms. Jeniece 
Alberts, Ms. Naija Thomas, Ms. Janica Gordon and Ms. Altoneisha Rose helped in organiz-
ing and greeting the workshop participants. 
 

►Conferences: Mrs. Gloria B. Moultrie, vice chancellor for Community Outreach/

University Advancement, delivered welcome remarks at the American Association of 
Physics Teachers (AAPT) 2016 Winter Meeting Plenary Session Jan. 10 at the Hyatt Re-
gency New Orleans. 
 
Dr. Elaasar,   Dr. Rachid Belmasrour,   Dr. Yi Zhen, Ms. Jeniece Alberts and Ms. Naija 
Thomas attended the American Association of Physics Teachers (AAPT) winter meeting 
Jan. 9-12 at the Hyatt Regency New Orleans. 

 
Dr. Murty Kambhampati, Dr. Elaasar, Dr. Marshall, Dr. Lisa Mims-Devezin and Dr. Joseph Olubadewo attended 
the 2016 SUNO Strategic Planning Retreat  Jan. 22, at the Hilton New Orleans Airport Hotel in Kenner. 
 
Dr. Clement, along with his research team members, has submitted abstracts on behalf of three SUNO students, 
Ms. Paula Datri, Ms. Diamanika Moss and Ms. April Harding, to the Beta Kappa Chi, National Scientific Honor 
Society for the 73rd Joint Meeting BKX and NIS for 2016. It will take place in Hampton, VA., and is co-hosted by 
Hampton University and Norfolk State University. 
 

►Awards: Dr.  Elaasar received a plaque from 

Mr. George Amann, the vice president of the 
American Association of Physics Teachers 
(AAPT), in appreciation of his help in organiz-
ing the AAPT 2016 Winter Meeting in New Or-
leans. 
 

►Presentations: Dr. Elaasar presented a talk at 

the American Association of Physics Teachers 
Winter Meeting Jan. 12. The presentation was 
titled “Using robotics and relatable STEM top-
ics to motivate students to pursue careers in 
science.” He presented data obtained from the 
GEMS camp funded by the NNSA and held at SUNO the past two summers. The coauthors were Dr. Rachid Bel-
masrour, Ms. Jeniece Alberts, Mr. Brandon Bailey, and Ms. Amber Dillon. 



 

Health Information Management Systems 

5 

►Program Director 
The HIMS department is pleased to announce the promotion of Ms. Pharissa Robinson, JD, MS, RHIA, CMPA, 
as interim director of the HIMS program. Professor Robinson is a graduate of the Loyola University School of 
Law. She also obtained a Master of Science in Health Care Management from the University of New Orleans.  
She is a certified Registered Health Information Administrator (RHIA) through the American Health Infor-
mation Management Association and a certified Professional Medical Auditor through the American Academy 
of Professional Coders. Ms. Robinson has served as the Chief Corporate Compliance Officer for the LSU 
Healthcare Network. She has had various healthcare consulting positions, and successfully has practiced 
healthcare law. Ms. Robinson is filling the role of Mrs. Andrea Mignott, who has chosen to step down to focus 
on completing her doctorate degree.  As we welcome Ms. Robinson into her new role, we would  like to thank 
Mrs. Mignott for  her continued dedication and service to this program and university. 
 

►Internship 

The department has acquired internships and clinical affiliation sites for six students.  The students will be giv-
en the opportunity to display learned skills and obtain hands-on training in such areas as management, quality 
improvement, compliance and coding. The students will be assigned to University Medical Center-New Orle-
ans, River Oaks Hospital, St. Luke’s Hospital and Diagnostic Imaging Services. Many students have been of-
fered full-time career opportunities based on their excellent performance at the clinical internship sites.  Our 
students are prepared to continue developing workforce relations with healthcare employers throughout the 
city of New Orleans and the State of Louisiana. 
 

►Continuing Education   

Ms. Pharissa Robinson completed 10 continuing education hours in ICD-10 through the American Academy of 
Professional Coders (AAPC). AAPC has nationally renowned ICD-10 experts who have developed compre-
hensive training and resources to guide a practice through the ICD-10 transition. AAPC credentialed coders 
have proven mastery of all code sets, evaluation and management principles, and documentation guidelines. 
 
Ms. Robinson attended Southern University’s Strategic Planning Session where the department’s strengths and 
weaknesses were identified for purposes of building an HIMS niche that set the University apart from other 
competitors.  Ms. Robinson also attended LAHIMA’s Health Information Privacy training at West Jefferson 
Hospital.  

Arts & Humanites 
Dr. Douglas Marshall began his term of office as vice chair of the National States Advisory Committee for the 
National Communication Association in January. He was elected to the position late last year.  

 
Ms. Cynthia Ramirez attended the College Art Association Conference in Washington, D.C. Feb. 3-6. 

 
Dr. Robert Azzarello’s article, "Desiring Species in Darwin and Freud" has been accepted for publication in a 
forthcoming volume called Affective Ecocriticism. 

On Jan. 6, Dr. George Amedee was a guest commentator on WBOK AM 1230’s Dr. Clark 101 the Living Classroom. 
Dr. Amedee facilitated a meeting of the African American Jazz Festival Coalition (AJFC) as part of the Endowed 
Chair research activities on community leadership Jan. 20.  He also hosted a panel on Economic Development and 
Trade with Africa during the Martin Luther King Celebration at SUNO Jan. 22. The panelists were Mr. Carl Galmon, 
former director of New Orleans African Trade Office, and Barbara Major, founder of Citizen for Economic Equity. 

Social Sciences 



 

General Studies 

6 

Ms. Nyla Ceaser Noble attended the Strategic Planning Retreat Jan. 22 at the Hilton New Orleans Airport Hotel 

in Kenner.  

Dr. Deneen Lewis and Ms. Ceaser Noble attended a workshop at the University of New Orleans Jan. 23, entitled 

“Empowering African American Male Youth.” The guest speaker was Dr. Courtland Lee. 

►General 

The M.A. Museum Studies program welcomes Mr. Bamidele Agbasegbe Demerson as a new adjunct. There are a 
number of students who will be completing their Master’s Projects and Master’s Theses to graduate in May 2016. 

►Research 

Mr. Haitham Eid’s paper “The Museum Innovation Model: A Museum Perspective to Innovation” was accepted 
for publication at the 2016 Museums and the Web Conference in Los Angeles, CA. Click Here to read the article.  

Mr. Eid’s article “The Intersection between Social Innovation, Museums and Digital” was selected to be included 
in a new book, “The Museum Blog Book.” The book captures some of the best collection of blog posts and discus-
sions that reflect valuable new thinking and practice in and about museums. The book is published by Muse-
umsEtc. 

Dr. Sara Hollis is writing an article for the “New Orleans Tribune” about the upcoming exhibition, Self-Taught 

Genius, at the New Orleans Museum of Art. 

Mr. Demerson is conducting research on “Bags, Brooms, Bottles, and Bedcovers: Hoodoo Folk Beliefs in Fine 
Art.” He also is preparing for a conference presentation: “Slavery and the Pharmacopeia of Revolt: Reflections on 
Mackandal—Freedom Fighter by Painter Ulrick Jean Pierre” to be presented at a panel, The International Reach 
of Afro-Caribbean Roots, at the annual meeting of the Caribbean Studies Association, Port-au-Prince, Haiti in 
June 2016. 

►Community Outreach 

Mr. Eid’s Exhibition Design class is planning “A Loving Judgement,” a cartoon exhibition that address topics re-
lated to diversity, multiculturalism and social 
justice. The exhibition is part of The 6th Annu-
al New Orleans Loving Festival and will take 
place at the Arts Council of New Orleans’ Ex-
change Centre Gallery June 4-July 2. 

 
Mr. Eid attended the Museum Computer Net-
work (MCN) 2016 Conference Planning Com-
mittee meetings via phone conference. The 
MCN conference is an annual international 
meeting for museum professionals who are 
interested in technology. The conference will 
take place in New Orleans.  
 
Dr. Hollis regularly attends events at various 

Museum Studies 

Online and on-campus students working together to prepare for “A Loving Judgement” 

http://mw2016.museumsandtheweb.com/proposal/the-museum-innovation-model-a-museum-perspective-to-innovation/


 

Museum Studies continued 

7 

museums and galleries on a weekly basis. She supervises the internship students in M.A. Museum Studies, and 
visits the institutions where they are doing their internships.   
 
►Service to the Campus 
M.A. Museum Studies faculty attended various SUNO Black History Month programs and events. Mr. Demerson 
and Mr. Eid attended the Kickoff-Off Celebration featuring Schroeder Cherry, deputy director of the Institute for 
Museum and Library Services.  
 
Mr. Demerson also attended the Africana Film Series/Film Discussions and a lecture. 

 
Mr. Eid attended SUNO’s 2016 Strategic Planning Retreat at the Hilton New Orleans Airport Hotel in January, 
and the Council of Deans and Directors meeting in February.  

 

►CAMPUS:  

Both Profs. Eid and Hollis attended the College Meetings in November and December 2015,  the Thanksgiving 
Luncheon organized by the College of Education, and the Kwanzaa Celebration sponsored by the Center for Afri-
can and African-American Studies. Prof. Eid also attended the Directors and Chairs Arts and Sciences Meetings 
in November and December.   
 
Dr. Hollis served on the College of Arts and Sciences RTP Committee for 2015-2016.   
 

►COMMUNITY:   

On Nov. 3, 2015, Dr. Hollis and Mr. Eid participated in a board supervisory phone conference to advise the Ital-
ian American Museum in New Orleans on its proposal for the NEH. The museum seeks to redesign its exhibition 
space and utilize digital interactives. They also attended events at the Joan Mitchell Center in November and De-
cember.   
 
Dr. Hollis represented M.A. Museum Studies at the Annual Arts Council’s Event for 2015 at the Civic Theater on 
Dec. 2.  She also attended the 30th anniversary celebration of the New Orleans Tribune, for which she regularly 
writes,  the art opening at Stella Jones Gallery, and visited a number of New Orleans museums in November and 
December to see current exhibitions and possible sites for students’ internships and master’s exhibitions. 
In addition, Dr. Hollis is taking a NORD ceramics class. 
 
Museum Studies students aided in the curation and installation of a guest artist exhibition at the Joan Mitchell.   

College of Business & Public Administration 
Dr. Igwe Udeh, Dean 

►Academic Excellence Initiatives 

Dr. Igwe E. Udeh, Dean & Alvin James Lawson Professor of Business, attended the 2016 AACSB International 
Business Deans Conference in Miami, FL, Jan. 31-Feb. 2. The purpose of the conference was to meet with AACSB 
officials and network with business school deans from around the world. Additionally, Dr. Udeh attended ses-
sions where tips for the successful implementation of the new AACSB accreditation guidelines and standards 
were discussed. He attended plenary sessions led by industry leaders on such topics as "From Scalable Efficiency to 
Scalable Learning in a White Water World" and “The Leadership Imperative.” Other sessions he attended addressed 
“AACSB Visioning Initiatives,” “Accreditation Q&A,” “Expanding Revenue Streams,” “Innovative Trends in Teaching 
Business Programs” and “The Impact of Faculty Research.” Some of the sessions were led by deans of accredited 
schools and others were led by qualified professionals and corporate executives with knowledge of trends that 



 

Business continued 

8 

will dominate management education in the future. Dr. Udeh met with CBA's former mentor, Dr. Mo Sarhan, 
potential team members for SUNO’s upcoming accreditation review visit, members of the HBCU Business Deans 
Roundtable, and several AACSB officials, including SUNO's liaison officer, Jane Lawler, to discuss emerging is-
sues about how to maintain CBA’s AACSB accreditation. 

 
The Spring 2016 Microsoft & CompTIA A+ Boot Camps began Jan. 29 and 
the Spring 2016 CISCO CCENT Boot Camp began Jan. 30. There are two 
Microsoft & CompTIA A+ Boot Camps this spring (one on Friday and one 
on Saturday). Both camps are taking place in the Computer Labs on the 
second floor of the College of Business & Public Administration Building. 
The Boot Camps are an eight-to-10-week training session to help prepare 
students and faculty who wish earn CISCO CCENT or CompTIA certifi-
cation in order to either obtain high paying jobs or move up in their cur-
rent jobs in the rapidly growing IT service fields. The camps are taught by 

certified experts who are currently working in the IT fields. These boot camps have been going on at SUNO since 
Summer 2014 and have helped several students, faculty and staff acquire the knowledge essential for attempt-
ing the two certification exams. The program is open to SUNO students and faculty, regardless of major. SUNO 
staff and members of the community may attend if space is available. Each camp can accommodate as many as 
15 participants each session. 

 
Four SUNO employees attended the Jan. 19 NORIA meeting hosted at the Homer L. Hitt Alumni Center – Uni-
versity of New Orleans Lakefront Campus. Those in attendance were Dr. Igwe E. Udeh, dean and Alvin James 
Lawson Endowed Professor of Business; Dr. Frank Martin, chair and Delores Spikes Endowed Professor, Mrs. 
Cynthia Beaulieu, director, Small Business Development & Management Institute; and Mrs. Tammy Barney, di-
rector,  Office of Public Relations. The four employees are the SUNO representatives in the New Orleans Region-
al Innovation Alliance (NORIA), a group of higher education and economic development institutions that signed 
a Memorandum of Understanding agreeing to support efforts for the growth of the Greater New Orleans Innova-
tion Eco-System and Economy. The mission of NORIA is to be a permanent framework for regular communica-
tions, joint decision-making (including rapid response capacity); and program/project development among the 
institutions and EDOs, with active industry participation, on all matters where such shared effort will leverage 
successful innovation outcomes. Each of the four SUNO employees serves on one of four committees 
(Collaboration/Coordination; University Research/Intellectual Assets; Talent/Workforce Development; and 
Public Awareness/Marketing) that support the work of NORIA. 
 
The CBA Office of Student Services, under the leadership of Mrs. 
Timotea Bailey, director, had the Spring 2016 New Student Orienta-
tion for the CBA’s new freshmen and transfer students on Feb. 18. 
More than 60 students attended. Students received critical infor-
mation about the resources available at SUNO that will help them 
not only to navigate their academic curriculum but also to thrive 
and succeed in their chosen careers. Participants, especially the more 
established students, were charged to take positive action to support 
the new freshman and transfer students by being “your brother’s/
sister’s keeper.” Presenters were from the SUNO Library, Center for Comprehensive Communication, Student 
Support Services, the Office of Finance, E-Learning, and Administration & Finance Office. Students were given 
information about the CBA by Dr. Igwe Udeh, dean, and by representatives of the various CBA departments (Dr. 
Frank Martin (BADM), Dr. Adnan Omar (CIS), and Dr. Biruk Alemayehu (PADM)). 
 



 

Business continued 

9 

►Refereed Journal Publications 

Muhammed Miah, Adnan Omar, Chadrick Nelson. (2016). “Growth, Security, and Forecasts of e-Commerce and 
m-Commerce”, International Journal of Emerging Trends in Engineering Research (IJETER), Vol 4, No 1. 
 
Adnan Omar, Muhammed Miah, Kiel Ellis. (2016). “Flipping a Class: Impact on Performance and Retention”, In-
ternational Journal of Networks and Systems (IJNS), Vol 5, No 1. 
 
Nabie Y. Conteh and M. D. Royer, “The Rise in Cybercrime and the Dynamics of Exploiting the Human Vulnerability 
Factor,” International Journal of Computer (IJC) 20 (1), 1-12 (Jan – Feb, 2016) 
Nabie Y. Conteh and P. Schmick; “Cybersecurity: risks, vulnerabilities and countermeasures to prevent social engineer-
ing attacks,” International Journal of Advanced Computer Research 6 (http://dx.doi.org/ 10 ... (Jan – Feb, 2016) 
 
Nabie Y. Conteh and D. A. D. Sword, “The Dynamics of Social Engineering and Cybercrime in the Digital Age”, Inter-
national Journal of Computer Science and Information Technology... (Jan – Feb, 2016) 
Nabie Y. Conteh and Q. Staton, “The Socio-Economic Impact of Identity Thefts and Cybercrime: Preventive Measures 
and Solutions;” International Journal of Computer Science and Business Informatics 15 (6) (Jan – Feb, 2016) 
 

►Conference Session Chairing 

Dr. Patricia Robertson,  2016 Conference of Minority Public Administrators (COMPA) in Jackson, MS., Feb. 17-19. 
 

►Conference Attendance & Paper Presentation 

Dr. Muhammed Miah attended the Education Special Interest Group (EDSIG) of Association of Information Tech-
nology Professional (AITP) Board meeting Jan. 30 in Austin, TX. EDSIG promotes and strengthens information 
systems education by encouraging dialog between practitioners and academic professionals, facilitating linkages 
and collaboration opportunities between industry and academia, disseminating innovations and best practices 
through the publication of scholarly journals, and organizing conferences in information systems education and 
information systems applied research. EDSIG sponsors two conferences and three journals. 

 

►Community Outreach 

Dr. Simeon Okpechi, professor of Accounting and director of the SUNO VITA Center, with the assistance of sev-
eral Business students and volunteers, is providing free income tax preparation to the elderly and low income 
residents in the community under the sponsorship of the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) Program, until 
April. So far, several tax returns have been successfully prepared and submitted. The new VITA office is located 
inside the SUNO University Center on SUNO’s Park Campus, and is open from Monday to Friday. 

 
On Dec. 26, Public Administration students and faculty organized a 5K Walkathon event to raise 
funds to attend the February 2016 Conference of Minority Public Administrators (COMPA) in 
Jackson, MS. Eight Public Administration students presented their research findings or participat-
ed in the 2016 COMPA conference. 
 
The Walkathon was organized under the leadership of Dr. Patricia Robertson, assistant professor 
of Public Administration. The COMPA conference was Feb. 17-19. 

 

►SBDMI Workshops/Seminars/Trainings/Meetings  

Mrs. Cynthia Beaulieu, director, Small Business Development & Management Institute, reported the following 

activities and achievements during January 2016: 

Met with LED Peer-to-Peer Facilitator to discuss roundtable seminar sessions; Jan. 4, 2016; Ms. Irma Dixon, Mrs. 
Cynthia Beaulieu, Ms. Diana Thomas. 

http://dx.doi.org/


 

Business continued 

10 

LED Peer-to-Peer First Session; Jan. 5; SUNO Small Business Incubator; seven participants; sponsored CEO/
Owner roundtable; first of 10 sessions; SUNO Small Business Incubator; Ms. Irma Dixon, facilitator; Ms. Cynthia 
Beaulieu and Ms. Diana Thomas. 
 
Conference Call HBCU-CDAC; Jan. 7; discussed planning for upcoming HBCU-CDAC Innovation and Economic 
Development Conference/Summit  scheduled March 30-April 1, 2016, in New Orleans at the Hilton Riverside; 
Mr. Ron Butler, director, board members and Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 
Met with LED Peer-to-Peer Facilitator; Jan. 8; discussed recruitment of participants for  Roundtable seminar ses-
sions; Jan. 4; Ms. Irma Dixon, Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu, Ms. Diana Thomas. 
 

NxLevel One-on One Consulting; Jan. 12; four participants; met with graduates 
of NxLevel Entrepreneurial Training to assist with continued business develop-
ment; SUNO Small Business Incubator; Ms. Terrie Guerin. 
 
NxLevel Entrepreneurial Training People Community; Marrero; Jan. 16; second 
class; Ms. Leatrice Hollis Founder/executive director, Ms. Angel Vonderpool, 
Ms. Diana Thomas and Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 

Attended LED Quarterly Meeting; Jan. 14; Louisiana State Library, Baton Rouge; mandatory meeting for LED 
Intermediaries State of Louisiana; discussed best practices and upcoming initiatives’; Ms. Diana Thomas and Ms. 
Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 
NxLevel Entrepreneurial Training People Community; Marrero; Jan. 12; first class; Ms. Leatrice Hollis Founder/
executive director, Ms. Angel Vonderpool, Ms. Diana Thomas and Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 
Live Broad Cast of WBOK Radio program; Jan. 21 and 28;“SUNO Small Business Institute Network,” sponsored 
by SUNO Small Business Incubator. The show offers valuable tools and information designed to help New Orle-
ans’ small business owners take their business to the next level as well as assisting those individuals wishing to 
start a business. The show provides resources and information essential to small businesses. It is broadcasted eve-
ry Thursday 2:30-3 p.m. on WBOK 1230 AM Radio. Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu, director of SBDMI, is the host, co-host 
is Ms. Terrie Guerin. 
 
2016 University Strategic Planning Meeting;  Airport Hilton Hotel; January 22, 2016; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu 
 
Teachers Job Fair Outreach; Jan. 23; SUNO Small Business Incubator; Smothers Charter School; Ms. Diana Thom-
as. 
 
Meeting with LED representatives; Jan. 25; Discuss new projects with LED; SUNO Small Business Incubator; Mr. 
John Matthews, SBDMI director; Ms. Titiana Bruce, SEBD; Ms. Diana Thomas and Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 
Conference Call HBCU-CDAC; Jan. 28; discuss planning for upcoming HBCU-CDAC Innovation and Economic 
Development Conference/Summit; Mr. Ron Butler, director; board members and Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 
Met at incubator to inventory media equipment; Jan. 28; Mr. John West, Ms. Tiffany Crawford, Ms. Diana Thom-
as and Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 
Meti with LED Peer-to-Peer Facilitator; Jan. 30; discussed recruitment of participants for Roundtable seminar ses-



 

Business continued 

11 

sions; nine participants; SUNO Small Business Incubator; Councilman James Gray, Mr. John Matthews, director 
SEBD; Ms. Irma Dixon, Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu, Ms. Diana Thomas. 
Met to develop SBDMI/Incubator upcoming schedule of seminars/workshops; ongoing; Ms. Diana Thomas and 
Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 

Small and Emerging Business Development (SEBD); Ongoing; seven assessments; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu 

 

SEBD One-on One; five call-in clients; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Diana Thomas 

 
Counseled incubator clients; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and  Ms. Diana Thomas 
 

►SBDMI Workshops/Seminars/Trainings/Meetings (December 2015) 

 
Notary Classes; Dec. 1; last class; seven participants; Small Business Incubator; class prepares participants to pass 
the Louisiana Notary Exam scheduled for Dec. 5. Ms. Diana Thomas, Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Suzan Jack-
son Esq, Attorney, instructor. 
 
NxLevel Entrepreneurial Training; 32 hours of training taught by certified instructors to assist participants to 
complete a written Business Plan; Small Business Incubator; Dec. 1,3,8,10, last class ; 11 participants; Ms. Diana 
Thomas, and Ms. Terrie Guerin and Mr. Bobby Major, instructors. 
 
Met with LED Peer-to-Peer facilitator; discussed upcoming roundtable seminar sessions; Dec. 8; Ms. Irma Dixon, 
Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Diana Thomas. 
 
SBDMI Claims Adjuster Seminar; Dec. 9; Small Business Incubator; 65 attended; held in conjunction Louisiana 
Department of Insurance; Mr. Patrick Bell, Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Diana Thomas. 
 
Live Broad Cast of WBOK Radio program; Dec. 10 and 17; “SUNO Small Business Institute Network,”sponsored 
by Small Business Incubator.  
 
Met to inventory media equipment; Nov. 2; Mr. John West, Ms. Tiffany Crawford, Ms. Diana Thomas and Ms. 
Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 
LED Peer-to-Peer Orientation; Dec. 15; Small Business Incubator; eight participants; sponsored CEO/Owner 
roundtable; 10 sessions starting in January 2016; SUNO Small Business Incubator; Ms. Irma Dixon, Facilitator, Ms. 
Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Diana Thomas. 
 
NxLevel One-on One Consulting; Dec. 15; three participants; met with graduates of NxLevel Entrepreneurial 
Training to assist with continued business development; SUNO Small Business Incubator; Ms. Terrie Guerin. 
 
Met with Dr. Udeh to discuss NOMAI/SBDMI Media Institute proposal; Dec. 16; CBA Executive Conference 
Room; Dr. Igwe Udeh, dean; Dr, Frank Martin, chair; Dr. Adnan Omar, chair; Ms. Timotea Bailey and Ms. Cyn-
thia Beaulieu. 
 
Met with University Administration to discuss NOMAI/SBDMI Media Institute proposal; Dec. 17; Chancellor 
Executive Conference Room; Victor Ukpolo, chancellor; Dr. Igwe Udeh, dean; Mr. Kemic Smothers, NOMAI; Ms. 
Gloria Moultrie, vice chancellor of Community Outreach; Mr. Julian Renthrope, vice chancellor of Finance; Dr. 
Frank Martin, chair; Dr. Adnan Omar, chair; Ms. Timotea Bailey and Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 



 

Business continued 

12 

Conference Call HBCU-CDAC; Dec. 17; discussed planning for upcoming HBCU-CDAC Innovation and Eco-
nomic Development Conference/Summit; Mr. Ron Butler, board members and Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 
 
NxLevel Entrepreneurial training presentations; Dec. 17; CBA Room 100; 15 in attendance; Critic of Business 
Plans by Dr. Frank Martin; Mr. Todd Palmer, Iberia Bank; Mr. Kirk Guerin; Ms. Diana Thomas and Ms. Cynthia 
Beaulieu. 
 
Met to Develop SBDMI/Incubator schedule of seminars/workshops; Ms. Diana Thomas and Ms. Cynthia Beau-
lieu. 
 

Small and Emerging Business Development (SEBD); three assessments; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 

 

SEBD One-on One; (3); Call-in Clients; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Diana Thomas. 

 
Counseled incubator clients; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu, Ms. Diana Thomas. 
 

►Office of Student Services (OSS) January-February 2016 Report 

Mrs. Timotea Bailey, Director of the Office of Student Services reported the following activities: 
 

The Office of Student Services (OSS) oversaw a successful Spring 2016 student registration process with its inter-

nal records showing the following outcomes: 

  77% of 2015 cohorts re-enrolled 

 46% of 2014 cohorts re-enrolled 

 26% of 2013 cohorts re-enrolled 

 20% of 2012 cohorts re-enrolled 

 21% of 2011 cohorts re-enrolled 

 7% of 2010 cohorts re-enrolled (14% of the 2010 CBA cohorts has already graduated which sets the 

CBA on track for potentially 18% graduation rate by the end of Spring 2016) 

 

Worked to resolve final registration issues for new and returning students. 

 

Worked to resolve course selection issues of candidate for graduation with Accounting concentrations for courses 

not yet offered at SUNO. 

 

Reviewed each registration schedule of Spring 2016 candidates for graduation to ensure that they are in the cor-

rect classes for graduation. 

 

Worked to resolve graduation issues for Spring 2016 candidates for graduation. 

 

Chaired an CBA Academic Action Committee to review suspension appeals for CBA students 

Received suspension appeals from students and prepared documents for review by the CBA Academic Action 

Committee. 

 

Communicated the decision of CBA Academic Action Committee to students. 

 



 

Business continued 

13 

Developed strategies for a path for academic recovery for suspended students designed to strengthen their aca-

demic records. 

 

Hosted a new CBA student orientation for Spring. 

 

Updated enrollment, registration, cohort, retention, and graduation reports on CBA stu-

dents. 

 

Has ongoing e-mail/phone communication and personal classroom visits with students to 

resolve enrollment, attendance, personal, academic issues. 

 
Participated in an all-day SACs Strategic Management Workshop. 

College of Education & Human Development 
Dr. Mwalimu  Shujaa, Dean 

►Highlights 

Dr. Jones attended the Louisiana Association of College and Teachers Education (LACTE) meeting Feb.y 19 to dis-
cuss plans for collection and disbursement data by the Board of Regents for CAEP accreditation in the future. 
 
The Interim Dean, Dr. Willie Jones, is developing a new bachelor of science degree in Educational Studies. 
 
A program change was submitted to the Curriculum Committee to change the perquisites of courses in the Ele-
mentary and Early Childhood degree programs. The changes now will only require students to pass Praxis I to 
enroll in methods courses. 
 
Dr. Wanga submitted the Master’s degree program to the Curriculum Committee for approval. 
 
The Department of Teacher Education is piloting a new initiative, The PLATO Collaborative Learning Group 
(PCLG), designed to assist aspiring teacher candidates with passing Praxis I Core Academic Skills for Educators 
assessments. Sessions are Tuesdays and Thursdays from Feb. 25-March 31 in the Lake Campus Multipurpose 
Complex, Room 609 from 1:45-3 p.m.   
  
On Feb. 4, faculty and staff hosted its Spring 2016 orientation for freshman and transfer students.   
 
Dr. Bordenave reviewed EPP Annual Report on AIMS, which opened on Jan. 11.  She also met with Dr. Marva 
Lewis to discuss Tulane-SUNO Talk, Touch and Listen grant proposal Jan. 12, 14 and 21. She also participated in 
Begin Cengage's online review of Strategies for Including Children with Special Needs in Early Childhood Set-
tings, 2nd Edition. by Klein/Cook/Richardson-Gibbs/Nielsen Jan. 28. 
 
The draft resolution report that was sent to the Board of Regents by the La. Department of Education regarding 
HCR 126 on Jan. 12; completed University survey as requested on Jan. 11;  and assisted with Registration in the 
gym and in the office Jan. 13 and 14. 
 
The Honore' Center continues to visit local high schools to recruit new students for its Fall 2016 cohort. An Open 
House is scheduled in March for interested students and their parents. This year, the Center will seek students 
who will be eligible for entry into SUNO upon matriculation, however it still will consider applicants who might 



 

Education continued 

14 

require development classes in cases where the candidate is otherwise very promising.      
 
The Center’s three newly assigned Honore' "apprentice educators" are now embedded at the Langston Hughes 
Charter Academy (preK-8) where they are spending two days per week learning firsthand skills and techniques 
from master teachers and administrators. We are proud of Louis Blackmon, Denzel Roberts and Donovan Woods 
for their commitment and dedication, and their willingness to become the first to participate in the pilot project. 

School of Social Work 

►Bonnie Alston 

Ms. Alston, director of Field Education, provided a presentation to the New Orleans Council on Aging Feb. 19,  
titled “Building Effective Communication Skills in the Workplace Through Team Building, Customer Service and 
the Resolution of Conflict.” The workshop/retreat provided training, education and addressed concerns of the 
staff through the use of group activities and role playing. 
 

►Dr. Rebecca Chaisson 

Dr. Rebecca A. Chaisson and Vurtonya Smith (MSW student) will present a paper “Bringing the Death Row In-
mate to Life: Testimony using genograms and ecomaps in Capital Cases” at the National Organization of Forensic 
Social Work Conference in June. Dr. Chaisson and Dr. Ben Robertson presented “Understanding Systems of Racial 
Inequity” Feb. 16 as part of the Black History Month Presentation series at SUNO. The presentation included a 
review of the film “Cracking the Codes: The System of Racial Inequity.” 
 

►Dr. Patricia Guillory 

Dr. Patricia Guillory attended the PESI 2016 Psychopharmacology Conference in Cincinnati, OH. She also is in 
discussions with the Acquisitions Editor at Cognella Academic Publishing regarding assuming the role of select-
ing and organizing an anthology for the possible use in a practice course in the School of Social Work. On the cam-
pus level, she has participated in the Social Work Dean Search Committee, has joined the Social Work Licensing 
Prep ad hoc committee, and has been selected to participate in the early Moodle training initiative.  
 

►Dr. Ronald J. Mancoske 

Dr. Mancoske attended the annual program of the Society for Social Work Research. The conference theme was 
“The Grand Challenges for Social Work.” He also participated in planning sessions with the United Way’s 
“Blueprint for Prosperity: Confronting Concentrated Poverty in Southeast Louisiana.”  

 
Dr. Ira Arthell Neighbors 
Dr. Neighbors attended the Black History month “Kick-off Celebration” at the University Conference Center Feb. 
2,  He also acted as site coordinator at the request of the Council of Social Work Education (CSWE) to reaffirm the 
accreditation of the BSW Program at Mid-Western State University at Wichita Falls, Texas Feb. 6.  Dr. Neighbors 
attended the Louisiana Justice Commission Hearing/Symposium on “The Role of the Media” at SUNO Feb. 16.   
Dr. Neighbors and Dr. Harry Russell received notice that a paper session entitled “Stop! Blaming the Victim: The 
Plight of African American Males in Pre-Post Katrina” was accepted to be presented at the National Organization 
of Forensic Social Work (NOFSW) Annual Conference in June.  Dr. Neighbors along with Ms. Bonnie Alston, Drs. 
Gail Wise and Derrick Freeman had their proposal accepted on “Juvenile Justice in New Orleans: Collaborating to 
Create Forensic Placements for Social Work Students” for presentation at the NOFSW Annual Conference.  

 

►Dr. Ben Robertson 

In January, two students accompanied Dr. Robertson in collecting survey date “Student’s Attitude Toward Ag-



 

Social Work continued 

15 

gression” at Capdau Chapter School and has scheduled to continue collecting student data at Lake Area High 
School.  In February, Drs. Robertson and Rebecca Chaisson presented a film and discussion about race relations 
and racial disparities, economically, interpersonally and socially for the second year during Black History Month. 
Dr. Robertson and Harry Russell were scheduled to conduct a work on African American Mental Health Feb. 25. 
Dr. Robertson received confirmation from The National Organization of Forensic Social Workers in New Orleans 
June 17 to discuss “Disrupting the School to Prison Pipeline.” 

 

►Dr. Torin Sanders 

Dr. Sanders was a presenter on “Safety in the Field” sponsored by the Recovery School District’s Case Manage-
ment Program Jan. 8. He also presented on “mentoring” for Goodwill Industries in the Mentor Program for In-
mates in Work-Release Jan. 14. Dr. Sanders served as a facilitator for the “Third Annual Youth Sexual Health Sum-
mit,” sponsored by Total Community Action and the Louisiana Public Health Institute Jan. 21. In addition, he at-
tended board meetings for the “Equity Index Project” sponsored by the Orleans Public Education Network Jan. 14 
and Gulf Coast Social Services Jan. 28. 

  

►Students 

The National Association of Social Workers wrote an article on the Health Education and Leadership Policy Sum-
mit in which four students were invited to participate: Jamia Burrows and Dehon Caillier (BSW Program) and 
Laura Sam and LaSonja Washington (MSW Program).  The summit focused on the transformations occurring in 
the health care delivery system and the need for leadership. 
 
 

http://www.socialworkers.org/pubs/news/2016/02/social-work-heals.asp
http://www.socialworkers.org/pubs/news/2016/02/social-work-heals.asp

































